

**Anderson County Charter Commission  
Minutes  
October 4, 2021  
Room 312**

BE IT REMEMBERED THAT THE ANDERSON COUNTY CHARTER COMMISSION MET IN REGULAR SESSION ON OCTOBER 4, 2021 AT 6:00 PM, WITH THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS PRESENT: TIM ISBEL, VL STONECIPHER, STEVE MEAD, BOB SMALLRIDGE, CHUCK FRITTS, JERRY WHITE AND SABRA BEAUCHAMP

ABSENT: STEVE EMERT

Chairman Stonecipher called the meeting to order.

Commissioner Fritts said the prayer.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Mead .

Commissioner Mead made a motion to approve the August 2, 2021 minutes.

Commissioner Fritts seconded the motion. Motion passed.

No citizens addressed the Commission.

Commissioner Mead made a motion to keep the Chairman and Vice-Chairman the same (Chairman Stonecipher, Vice-Chairman Smallridge). Commissioner Isbel seconded the motion. Motion passed.

Report / Update of compiling Charter and scheduling – Discussion. No Action taken.

Charter relative to plan of action – Discussion. No Action Taken.

Commissioner Fritts made a motion to use “County Legislative Body” in place of “Board” in Article II Section 2.01. Commissioner Smallridge seconded the motion. Motion passed.

**Section 2.02**

Sub Section B – Audit – Leave the Same using the State’s Comptroller

Sub Section C – Stay the same as under the ’81 Act

Sub Section D – Keep the same

Sub Section F – Commissioner Isbel made a motion for the Mayor’s Veto power for indebtedness remain the same. Commissioner Mead seconded the motion. Motion passed.

Sub Section I – Not requested. Law Director to find out more about this new item.

Sub Section J – Law Director to adjust the language “for good cause shown”.

**Anderson County Charter Commission**  
**Minutes**  
**October 4, 2021**  
**Room 312**

**Section 2.03**

Sub Section A #1 – Remove “eight districts shall each consist of seats A and B”.  
Sub Section A #2 – Strike this section.

Sub Section B – To remain the same.

**Section 2.04**

The salary of commission to remain the same.

**Section 2.07**

Removal of a member of the Board to remain the same.

**Section 2.09**

Sub Section A 1 & 2 – No change other than including ordinances.

Sub Section B – Adoption of an ordinance

(2) Commissioner Isbel made a motion that ordinances become effective after 30 days. Commissioner Beauchamp seconded the motion. Motion passed.

(3) No Change.

(4) Commissioner Fritts made a motion that Codes Enforcement and Animal Control be allowed to write ordinances and these ordinances be tried in the General Sessions Court. Commissioner Mead seconded the motion. Motion passed.

**Section 2.10**

Signature and Veto by the Mayor – To revisit

Old Business – None

New Business - None

Commissioner Mead moved to adjourn.

The next meeting will be November 1, 2021 at 6:00 pm.in room 312.

# CHARTER OF ANDERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE

## ~~Anderson County Home Rule~~ Charter Commission Members of 2022:

Sabra Beauchamp

Steve Emert

Chuck Fritts

Tim Isbell

Steve Mead

Bob Smallridge

V.L. Stonecipher

Jerry White

Commented [SDJ1]: Please review the names listed. All names were taken from the Anderson County government's website for the charter commission. See Charter Commission, <https://andersoncountyttn.gov/charter-commission/> (last visited September 22, 2021). Let us know if any changes need to be made.

## **CHARTER OF ANDERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE**

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

PREAMBLE .....	
ARTICLE 1	POWERS AND FUNCTIONS .....
Section 1.01.	Powers and Functions .....
Section 1.02.	Private and Local Affairs .....
Section 1.03.	Public Corporation Powers .....
Section 1.04.	Public Corporation Rights.....
Section 1.05.	Rights Reserved to the People .....
ARTICLE II	LEGISLATIVE BRANCH .....
Section 2.01.	Legislative Powers .....
Section 2.02.	Other Powers.....
Section 2.03.	Membership and Election; District, Seats, Reapportionment and Redistricting.....
Section 2.04.	Board Members' Salary and Compensation .....
Section 2.05.	Meetings and Quorum.....
Section 2.06.	Election of Chairman and Vice Chairman .....
Section 2.07.	Removal of Member(s) of the Board .....
Section 2.08.	Vacancy.....
Section 2.09.	Ordinances, Emergency Ordinances and Resolutions .....
Section 2.10.	Signature and Veto by the Mayor of Anderson County .....
ARTICLE III	EXECUTIVE BRANCH .....
Section 3.01.	Executive and Administrative Powers.....
Section 3.02.	Executive Branch.....
Section 3.03.	The Mayor's Duties .....
Section 3.04.	Mayor – Term, Qualifications, Compensation .....
Section 3.05.	Mayor – Vacancy .....
Section 3.06.	County Departments and Other Entities .....

Section 3.07.	Budget Procedures .....
Section 3.08.	Anderson County Law Director.....
ARTICLE IV	OTHER OFFICERS.....
Section 4.01.	Property Assessor.....
Section 4.02.	Sheriff .....
Section 4.03.	Register of Deeds.....
Section 4.04.	County Clerk.....
Section 4.05.	Trustee.....
Section 4.06.	Elections and Filing Vacancies.....
ARTICLE V	JUDICIAL BRANCH.....
Section 5.01.	Judiciary .....
Section 5.02.	Vacancy.....
Section 5.03.	Abolishing Divisions or Altering Compensation.....
Section 5.04.	Rules of Court and Evidence .....
Section 5.05.	Anderson County Code Commission (?).....
Section 5.06.	[Blank] Circuit Court.....
Section 5.07.	Juvenile Court.....
ARTICLE VI	EDUCATION .....
Section 6.01.	Board of Education .....
Section 6.02.	Board Duties and Powers.....
Section 6.03.	Board Salary and Compensation.....
Section 6.04.	Superintendent of Schools .....
Section 6.05.	Board of Education Employees .....
ARTICLE VII	PENSIONS .....
Section 7.01.	Continuation of Present System.....
Section 7.02.	Pension System .....
Section 7.03.	Anderson County Retirement and Pension Board .....
Section 7.04.	Powers and Duties.....

ARTICLE VIII	ELECTIONS.....
Section 8.01.	Primary Election Required.....
Section 8.02.	Date of Primary .....
Section 8.03.	Qualifying Petitions .....
Section 8.04.	Notice of Election and Other Provisions .....
ARTICLE IX	GENERAL PROVISIONS .....
Section 9.01.	Title and Filing of Charter .....
Section 9.02.	Liberal Construction of Charter .....
Section 9.03.	Definitions.....
Section 9.04.	Construction of Words in This Charter.....
Section 9.05.	Amendments to This Charter .....
Section 9.06.	Discrimination Prohibited.....
Section 9.07.	Qualification and Oath of Elected Officers .....
Section 9.08.	Conflict of Interest .....
Section 9.09.	Bonding of Officers and Employees.....
Section 9.10.	Residence and Qualifications of County Officials and Employees.....
Section 9.11.	Ex-Officio Members – Boards, Authorities, Commissions and Agencies.....
Section 9.12.	Private Acts .....
Section 9.13.	County Seal and Flag .....
Section 9.14.	Service of Process on County .....
Section 9.15.	Health Service.....
Section 9.16.	Severability .....
ARTICLE X	TRANSACTION PROVISIONS.....
Section 10.01.	Repeal of Contrary Laws .....
Section 10.02.	Prior Resolutions, Orders and Regulations.....
Section 10.03.	Pending Matters .....
Section 10.04.	Judicial and Other Proceedings.....

Section 10.05.	Rights and Obligations.....
Section 10.06.	Elected and Appointed Officers.....
Section 10.07.	Zoning.....
Section 10.08.	Referendum.....
Section 10.09.	Effective Date .....

## CHARTER OF ANDERSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE

### Preamble

*We, the people of Anderson County, Tennessee, in recognition of the dual role of the County, as a political subdivision of the State of Tennessee and as a unit of local government, in order to avail ourselves of self-determination in County affairs to the fullest extent permissible under the Tennessee Constitution and laws of the State of Tennessee, do hereby publish, declare and adopt this Charter of Anderson County, Tennessee, and confer upon Anderson County Government the following powers, procedures, and governmental structures, subject to the restrictions contained herein.*

For

### ARTICLE I

#### POWERS AND FUNCTIONS

##### Section 1.01. General Grant of Powers

The Anderson County Government ("County Government") shall exercise any power or perform any function which is not denied by the Constitution of the State of Tennessee ("Constitution"). It is the intent of this Charter of Anderson County, Tennessee ("Charter") that limitations on the powers of County Government shall be strictly construed, and that grants of power to County Government shall be liberally construed.

##### Section 1.02. Private and Local Affairs

With regard to private and local affairs, all lawful powers are vested in the Mayor of Anderson County and the Commission of Anderson County, except those powers reserved to the judiciary. This investment of legislative, executive, and other powers and duties shall be as full and complete, and the authority to perform or to direct them as broad, as is possible to delegate or confer, it being the intent to invest the County Government every authority, power, and responsibility for the conduct of the affairs of the government of Anderson County, including, but not limited to, the powers to adopt and enforce resolutions, ordinances, and emergency ordinances.

##### Section 1.03. Public Corporation Powers

This Charter provides that the government described herein shall be an alternative form of county government vested with any and all powers which counties are, or may hereafter be, authorized or required to exercise under the Constitution and general laws of the State of Tennessee, and any and all powers and duties of such county that are required or authorized by private acts effective on the date of ratification of this Charter, as fully and completely as though the powers were specifically enumerated herein.

Commented [SDJ2]: Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-1-203(b) states that when the charter is complete it results in the creation of an alternate form of government "to perform all the governmental and corporate functions previously performed by the county." Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-1-203(b). Further, Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-1-210(1) provides that after the charter is enacted the county is "vested with any and all powers that counties are, or may hereafter be, authorized or required to exercise . . . ." Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-1-210(1).

Given this statutory language, specifically enumerating powers is disfavored in drafting a document that is to be a general governing document and disfavored under the legal doctrine of "*expressio unius est exclusio alterius*" ("the expression of one thing is the exclusion of the other"). Shelby County and Knox County Charters' general grant of powers provisions, permitting the County "any power" to "perform any function which is not denied by the Constitution of the State of Tennessee," is the preferred form for drafting this type of charter. This comports with the Charter Commission's desire for the county's powers to largely remain the same "as previously performed by the county." See Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-1-210(1).

Further, this general grant of powers includes a construction clause, requiring "limitations on the powers of County Government shall be strictly construed, and that grants of power to County Government shall be liberally construed," thus dispensing with the need for the Working Copy's "Construction of Powers" provision.

Commented [SDJ3]: This provision is required pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-1-210(1).



*Section 1.04. Public Corporation Rights*

The County Government shall be a public corporation, with perpetual succession, capable of suing and being sued, and capable of purchasing, receiving, and holding property, real and personal, and of selling, leasing or disposing of the same to the same extent as other counties.

**Commented [SDJ4]:** This provision is required pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-1-210(2).

*Section 1.05. Rights Reserved to the People*

No provision of this Charter, and no action by any officer or employee of the County acting under its authority, shall infringe upon rights, privileges, and powers now or hereafter reserved or guaranteed to individual persons or to the people by the Constitution of the United States of America or the Constitution of the State of Tennessee.

## ARTICLE II

### LEGISLATIVE BRANCH

#### Section 2.01. Legislative Powers

*County Legislative Body*

The legislative power of the County is vested in the Board of County Commissioners of Anderson County ( "Board"), which is the Legislative Branch and County Legislative Body of the County. The legislative power of the County includes all lawful authority to adopt ordinances, emergency ordinances, and resolutions governing the operation of government or regulating the conduct and affairs of the residents of the County; to adopt and amend the County budget; to fix all County tax rates and to provide for the collection of all County taxes; to release County taxpayers from double taxes, when such has occurred; to provide for corrections in tax lists; to appropriate County funds for any and all lawful purposes; and to exercise all other authority of a legislative nature which is vested in the County by the Constitution, all applicable laws of the State of Tennessee, or this Charter. The Board may adopt any ordinance, emergency ordinance, or resolution which is not in conflict with the Constitution, general laws of the State of Tennessee, or this Charter.

**Commented [SDJ1]:** The defined term Board may cause confusion in any area that deals with the School Board. Should this be changed to Commission? A decision for the Charter Commission.

#### Section 2.02. Other Powers

A. The Board is vested with all other powers of the government of Anderson County not specifically, or by necessary implication, vested in some other official of the County by the Constitution of the State of Tennessee, by this Charter, or by law not inconsistent with this Charter. In exercising its legislative functions, the Board may employ, subject to budgeting limitations, assistants, and other employees. However, the Board shall not exercise any powers or perform any functions of the County Government which are vested, by the terms of this Charter, in either the Executive Branch or the Judicial Branch. Whenever any public or private act of the State of Tennessee purports to authorize the county court, the Board, or the Mayor to perform any administrative or executive act or function, then such act or function shall be performed by the Mayor except as otherwise provided in this Charter.

B. The Board shall provide annually, by resolution, for an independent audit of the accounts and other evidences of financial transactions of the County and of every County office and such other special audits as the Board deems necessary. Such audits shall be made by a certified public accountant or by a firm of certified public accountants designated by the Board, and no individual auditor or member of an auditing firm so designated shall have any personal financial interest, direct or indirect, in the fiscal affairs of the County or of any of its offices. The designated certified public accountants shall be qualified by training and experience and shall have sufficient staff to perform the audits. The individual certified public accountant or firm of certified public accountants may be employed to perform the audit for the term set by resolution.

**Commented [SDJ2]:** There are a couple of options to consider for this section. Knox County limits the firm from auditing the county for more than four (4) years, while Shelby County's Charter is a bit more permissive and grants the county commission the right to set the accountant firm's employment by resolution.

**Commented [SDJ3]:** This is required see Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 4-3-304(4)(B).

C. By ordinance, the Board shall establish rules and regulations governing all County purchases, sales, contracts for services and disposal of surplus property. Such ordinance may

**Commented [SDJ4]:** The inclusion of this section is optional. Shelby County's Charter contains it. Knox County's does not. The section is permissive and allows the Board to grant the Mayor power to promulgate more purchasing rules.

provide that the Mayor may promulgate rules and regulations to administer the purchasing procedures established by ordinance.

D. The Board shall have the sole power to grant franchises by ordinance, provided no such franchise shall be granted for a period to exceed thirty (30) years.

E. No sale or transfer of real property, or any interests therein, owned by the County shall be valid unless approved by resolution of the Board.

F. By resolution, which shall not be subject to veto by the Mayor of Anderson County, the Board shall have the power to authorize the borrowing of money and issuance of bonds, notes, and other evidences of indebtedness of the County and all matters pertaining thereto. Such a resolution shall be effective immediately upon its adoption by the Commission.

G. By resolution, the Board may employ, contract with, or otherwise hire, any person(s) or business entity(ies) which it deems necessary to the exercise of the powers vested in it unless otherwise provided by this Charter.

H. By ordinance, the Board may establish and name such special districts and, in connection therewith, shall provide for assessments, levies, and collections of taxes and assessments with respect to any or all property, real or personal, or privileges within any such district and the pledge of the revenues derived and to be derived therefrom, all as in its judgment may be necessary or appropriate for the exercise within such district of any one or more of the public corporation rights of powers of the government of Anderson County not then being exercised for the benefit of all citizens of the County. The subsequent exercise of any such right or power for the benefit of all citizens of the County shall not impair any special district theretofore established or any contracts, pledges, or obligations of the government of Anderson County with respect thereto.

I. Upon adoption of an approving resolution in each instance by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the entire Board, the Board and its authorized committees shall have fuller power and authority to hold public hearings, with power to subpoena witnesses and to administer oaths where necessary or desirable, for the purpose of either (1) gathering information necessary or desirable for the purpose of considering proposed Board legislation, or (2) investigating any allegation of violations of this Charter, ordinances or emergency ordinances of the Board brought by either the Mayor or any member of the Board against any elected official or employee of the Board. No such hearing shall be held with or without such subpoena power having been exercised except when a quorum of the Board or any authorized committee, as appropriate, is present.

J. By resolution, the Board may appoint members to those boards and commissions the Board deems necessary in the furtherance of its duties and responsibilities under this Charter or as provided by state law. All such appointees shall be residents of Anderson County at the time of their appointment and at all times while serving on said board or commission. The Board shall have the authority, by resolution, to remove and discharge all such members for good cause shown.

Commented [SDJ5]: I believe there is statutory authority related to this section. I would like to take a look at it with relation to the final sentence.

Commented [SDJ6]: This provision is optional.

Commented [SDJ7]: The inclusion of this section is optional. Tennessee Court of Appeals has stated that "the signing of bonds, tax anticipation notes, and bond anticipation notes is an integral part of the legislative function of issuing bonds, and in the absence of a specific provision giving the county mayor authority to sign those instruments that power will not be extended to that official by implication." *Shelby Cty. v. Blanton*, 595 S.W.2d 72 (Tenn. Ct. App. 1978). Thus (1) by nature, borrowing money and issuing bonds is a legislative function only to be performed by the Board and the Mayor does not necessarily have veto power over the Board's power; and (2) counties can grant the Mayor such power to veto and/or sign such instruments if it wishes.

Commented [SDJ8]: This clause is optional.

Commented [SDJ9]:

**Section 2.03. Membership and Election, Districts, Seats, Reapportionment and Redistricting**

A. The Board members shall be elected by the people from such districts of Anderson County as may from time to time be provided by ordinance.

**Commented [SDJ10]:** Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-1-210(4) requires the Charter to provide for the size, method of election, and qualifications for holding office.

(1) The Board under this Charter shall initially consist of sixteen (16) members elected from eight (8) districts. The first Board members shall be elected in the County general election of 20\_\_\_\_\_ and shall be residents of, and represent, the eight (8) districts of the former board of county commissioners as shall exist on \_\_\_\_\_. ~~The eight (8) districts shall each consist of seats A and B.~~ Any resident of any such district desiring to stand for election to the Board and qualified to do so pursuant to the requirements of this Charter shall qualify in accordance with applicable law for one (1) specific seat representing such Board district. Each qualified voter in any Board district may vote for one (1) candidate for each Board seat representing such district.

(2) ~~Subsequent to the year 20\_\_\_\_\_, the Board by ordinance may alter, by an affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the membership of the Board, the number of Board districts or the number of Board members so long as:~~

**Commented [SDJ11]:** The Board has a duty to reapportion districts every ten (10) years to make the districts' populations substantially equal. See Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-1-111.

(a) ~~the total number of Board districts shall not be less than nine (9) nor more than twenty-five (25);~~

**Commented [SDJ12]:** Pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-1-108, there cannot be more than twenty-five (25) districts.

(b) the total number of members of the Board shall not be less than nine (9) nor more than twenty-five (25);

(c) each seat is a separate office and not more than three (3) members shall be elected for any one (1) district; and

(d) all districts comply with constitutional requirements.

B. ~~The regular terms of the Board members shall be four (4) years which shall all run concurrently. On or before \_\_\_\_\_, and every ten (10) years thereafter, it shall be the duty of the Board, based upon the most recent Federal decennial census, to reapportion and/or redistrict the Board seats so as to comply with Constitutional requirements. The voting precincts of the County shall be established by the Board, by ordinance, unless otherwise provided by applicable law.~~

**Commented [SDJ13]:** See Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-1-111.

C. No person shall be eligible to serve as a member of the Board unless that person shall have attained the age of eighteen (18) and is a resident of, and a registered voter in, the district from which such person seeks election on the date he or she filed his or her nominating petition and has been a resident of both the County and the district for one (1) year prior to such person's election; provided, however, that the district residency requirement shall not apply in the first general election at which Board seats appear on the ballot following any reapportionment or redistricting of Board districts. A member of the Board shall remain a resident of the Board district which such member represents during his or her term of office.

D. The Board shall adopt its own rules of order and procedure. All resolutions, ordinances and emergency ordinances shall be adopted in accordance with the Constitution, all applicable laws of the State of Tennessee, and this Charter.

E. In all proceedings of the Board to either elect officers of the Board or to fill vacancies in elective offices, the following procedure shall be followed:

- (1) Nominations may be made by members of the Board only.
- (2) Each member of the Board may vote in favor of one (1) nominee, by name, only.
- (3) Election of a nominee shall require a majority vote of the membership of the Board. Prior to such election, the Board shall, by resolution or ordinance, establish the procedure for arriving at a majority vote.

F. When any public office is to be filled by the Board, if any member of the Board accepts the nomination as a candidate for such public office, the following procedure shall be followed:

- (1) No member of the Board who is absent from any proceeding to fill a public office shall be eligible to have his or her name placed in nomination unless either the Chairman (woman) of the Board or the County Clerk shall have present at such meeting of the Board a written acceptance of such nomination signed by such member of the Board.
- (2) If a Board member's name is placed in nomination, the Chairman (woman) of the Board shall, prior to the first vote, require that member to either accept or decline the nomination. A refusal to either accept or decline shall disqualify that member for nomination.
- (3) No vote shall be recorded in favor of any member of the Board who has either declined nomination or has been otherwise disqualified.
- (4) The acceptance of nomination by a member of the Board shall automatically disqualify such member to vote to fill that office.
- (5) If the Board member is elected, his or her seat on the Board shall immediately be vacant.

#### Section 2.04. Board Members' Salary and Compensation

The salary of the Chairman (woman) of the Board shall be twenty percent (20%) of the salary of a Circuit Court judge in Anderson County. The salary for other members of the Board shall be forty percent (40%) of the salary of the Chairman (woman) of the Board. The compensation allowed any member of the Board shall not be decreased during the term of office and shall not be increased more than thirty percent (30%) during the term of office. Any increase in compensation shall be set by the annual budget.

Commented [SDJ14]: The percentages here used are taken from the Working Copy. See also Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-5-107.

*Section 2.05. Meetings and Quorum*

The Board shall meet at least once each month at a time and place to be determined by the Board. A quorum for the purpose of conducting business shall be a majority of the membership of the Board.

*Section 2.06. Election of Chairman (woman) and Vice Chairman (woman)*

The Board, at its first session after August 4, 2022, and annually thereafter, shall elect from its membership a chairman (woman), vice chairman (woman), and such other officers as the Board deems necessary. The election procedures shall follow those established pursuant to Section 2.03(E).

*Section 2.07. Removal of Member of the Board*

A member of the Board may be removed from office according to the laws of the State of Tennessee.

**Commented [SDJ15]:** This provision and the removal of a member of a County Legislative Body are set forth in Tenn. Code Ann. § 8-47-101 to -127.

*Section 2.08. Vacancy*

In the event of a vacancy in the office of a member of the Board, the remaining members of the Board shall fill said vacancy within sixty (60) days with a person meeting the qualifications for said position until his or her successor is elected and sworn. The successor to the person so selected by the Board to fill the vacancy shall be elected by the qualified voters of such Board district at the next general election; provided, however, that if such vacancy occurs within thirty (30) days prior to the next general election, the person so selected by the Board to fill the vacancy shall serve the remainder of the term of that Board seat.

**Commented [SDJ16]:** Generally, T.C.A. § 5-1-104(b) and (c) govern vacancies, which requires the county legislative body to fill vacancies, and that the successor appointee serves until the next general election. The statute also requires that the Board make an appointment to fill a vacancy within 120 days of notice of the vacancy, along with other specifications.

*Section 2.09. Ordinances, Emergency Ordinances and Resolutions*

*A. Generally*

(1) ~~The Board shall exercise its legislative authority by resolution, ordinance, or emergency ordinance as hereinafter set forth.~~

(2) ~~All ordinances, emergency ordinances, and resolutions which repeal, revise or amend former ordinances, emergency ordinances, or resolutions shall recite in their caption the number and date of adoption of the ordinance, emergency ordinance, or resolution repealed, revised, or amended.~~

(3) In order to become effective, any ordinance or resolution shall receive a majority vote of the membership of the Board except the following:

**Commented [SDJ17]:** There is an option related to this section. There is a rule for passing ordinances and resolutions which mirrors the Tennessee Constitution's "single-subject rule," which requires each act of the legislature to be limited to a single subject. See Tenn. Const. Art. II, §-17.

**Commented [SDJ18]:** No ordinance shall be amended except by a new ordinance. See Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-1-211(d)(5).

- (a) Any ordinance proposing an amendment to this Charter shall be adopted by a favorable vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the membership of the Board.
  - (b) Any resolution authorizing the Board, or its authorized committee(s), to hold public hearings pursuant to Section 2.02(1) of this Charter shall be adopted by a favorable vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the membership of the Board.
  - (c) Any ordinance pursuant to Section 2.03(A)(2) of this Charter shall be adopted by a favorable vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the membership of the Board.
  - (d) All emergency ordinances shall be adopted in accordance with applicable law and this Charter.
- (4) No ordinance, emergency ordinance, or resolution shall become effective unless the following procedure is followed:
- (a) Each member of the Board present shall distinctly, audibly or visually cast his or her vote, and the County Clerk shall record, in writing, each member's vote as "yea," "nay," or "abstain."
  - (b) At the conclusion of each vote, either the Chairman (woman) of the Board or the County Clerk shall distinctly and audibly announce the tally of each category of votes cast.
  - (c) No member of the Board shall change his/her vote after the vote is announced unless granted the right to do so by a majority of the membership of the Board at such Board meeting at which the original vote was cast. It shall be the duty of the Chairman(woman) of the Commission or the County Clerk, at the time of such vote change, to announce distinctly, audibly or visually the caption of the subject legislation as well as the name and manner of vote change of such member of the Board.
  - (d) Upon the adjournment of each and every meeting of the Board, it shall be the duty of the County Clerk to maintain and preserve, unchanged, as public records available for inspection during reasonable office hours, the voting record for each and every ordinance, emergency ordinance and resolution.
- (5) It shall be the duty of the County Clerk to deliver to the Mayor true and attested copies of all ordinances, emergency ordinances, and resolutions within four (4) days of final adoption by the Board.
- (6) It shall be the duty of the County Clerk to deliver to the County Law Director true and attested copies of all ordinances, emergency ordinances, and resolutions within thirty (30) days of their effective date.
- (7) The County Clerk shall number and compile in an ordinance book all ordinances and emergency ordinances and shall number and compile in a resolution book all

resolutions. The County Clerk shall preserve such books in the County Clerk's office. The County Clerk shall furnish a true copy for a reasonable fee to any person so requesting.

(8) It shall be the duty of the County Clerk to provide copies of this Charter and amendments thereto, together with all ordinances and emergency ordinances, to the Anderson County Code Commission as provided in Section 4.05 of this Charter.

(9) The County Clerk may delegate to his/her deputy(ies) any or all duties imposed upon the County Clerk by this Charter; provided, however, that nothing in this subsection (9) shall be construed to relieve the County Clerk of any responsibilities imposed upon

him/her by this Charter.

#### B. Ordinances

(1) An ordinance shall be considered to be on the agenda of any meeting of the Board only if:

(a) the caption of such ordinance is quoted verbatim in the agenda for such meeting and a copy of such agenda has been made available to each and every member of the Board not later than five (5) days prior to such Board meeting; and

(b) a copy of such ordinance has been made available to each member of the Board at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to such meeting.

(2) To become effective, each ordinance shall be adopted in accordance with all applicable laws of the State of Tennessee; provided, however, that in the absence of any applicable law in conflict with this Charter, to become effective, each ordinance shall be approved by a majority of the members of the Board upon three (2) readings, with not less than one (1) week elapsing between first and third readings.

(3) An ordinance shall take effect on the fifteenth (15th) day following its passage on final reading, except in the case of an emergency ordinance.

(4) Ordinances imposing fines or imprisonment as punishment for violation thereof shall be enforced by the Sheriff of Anderson County of the County unless such ordinance otherwise provides. Persons charged with violation of such an ordinance shall be tried in the Court of General Sessions. Any fines or penalties, or both, and court costs collected for such violation, shall be paid into the County general fund.

**Commented [SDJ19]:** See Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-1-211(a)-(c).

**Commented [SDJ20]:** See Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-1-211(h).

#### C. Emergency Ordinances

(1) An emergency ordinance shall be so designated in its caption.

(2) To become effective, an emergency ordinance shall be adopted in accordance with all applicable laws of the State of Tennessee; provided, however, that in the absence of applicable law in conflict with this Charter, an emergency ordinance shall be adopted by an affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the Board pursuant to the following procedure:



(a) An emergency ordinance which appears on the regular agenda, as any other ordinance, pursuant to Section 2.09(B), shall take effect either upon the signature of the Mayor of Anderson County or, in the absence of a veto, as hereinafter provided and without the signature of the Mayor, upon the eighth (8th) day following its adoption, upon one (1) reading by the Board, whichever first occurs.

(b) An emergency ordinance may be added to the agenda of any meeting of the Board at which a quorum is present by unanimous consent of the members of the Board present and voting for the sole purpose of a reading thereof; such emergency ordinance may be adopted upon second (2nd) reading at the next meeting of the Board. Such emergency ordinance shall become effective either upon the signature of the Mayor of Anderson County or, in the absence of a veto as hereinafter provided and without the signature of the Mayor of Anderson County, upon the eighth (8th) day following its adoption, whichever first occurs.

#### D. Resolutions

All resolutions shall be adopted upon receiving a majority vote of the membership of the Board upon one (1) reading and shall become effective in accordance with Section 2.10 of this Charter.

#### *Section 2.10. Signature and Veto by the Mayor of Anderson County*

A. Every ordinance, emergency ordinance, and resolution shall be submitted to the Mayor of Anderson County for approval or veto; provided, however, that this requirement shall not apply to (1) resolution authorizing the borrowing of money and the issuance of bonds and notes and other evidences of indebtedness of the County and all matters pertaining thereto, as provided in Section 2.02(E) of this Charter, which resolutions shall become effective immediately upon their adoption by the Board, or (2) ordinances, emergency ordinances, and resolutions affecting zoning regulations, which shall become effective immediately upon their adoption by the Board. Upon the signature of the Mayor, an ordinance, emergency ordinance, or resolution becomes effective as provided in Sections 2.09 and 2.10 of this Charter.

B. Any ordinance or resolution vetoed by the Mayor of Anderson County shall be returned to the County Clerk within ten (10) days after the ordinance or resolution is required by this Charter to be submitted to the Mayor. Any emergency ordinance vetoed by the Mayor of Anderson County shall be returned to the County Clerk within three (3) days after the emergency ordinance is required by the Charter to be submitted to the Mayor. The County Clerk shall notify the members of the Board, in writing, within five (5) days of receipt by the County Clerk.

C. Any vote of the Board to override the veto of the Mayor of Anderson County shall be taken within thirty-five (35) days of the expiration of the period required of the County Clerk to notify the members of the Board of the veto which is the subject of such override vote. The affirmative vote of not less than a simple majority of the membership of the Board shall be required to override the veto of the Mayor; provided, however, that in the case of ordinances and emergency

ordinances requiring a two-thirds (2/3) vote for original passage, a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the membership of the Board shall be required to override the veto of the Mayor. The ordinance, emergency ordinance, or resolution shall immediately become effective upon the Board overriding the veto.

D. If the Mayor of Anderson County fails either to sign or veto an ordinance or resolution and to report this action to the County Clerk within ten (10) days after the ordinance or resolution is required by this Charter to be submitted to the Mayor (or within three [3] days in the case of an emergency ordinance), the Mayor of Anderson County shall have no further power to veto the ordinance, emergency ordinance, or resolution, and it shall become effective without the signature of the Mayor of Anderson County upon the expiration of the time periods in this Paragraph provided, or at a later date if the ordinance or resolution so provides.

## Roll Call

**Roll Number: \_\_\_\_\_**

**\*5 VOTES TO PASS**

**Anderson County Charter Commission**  
**Minutes**  
**August 2, 2021**  
**Room 312**

BE IT REMEMBERED THAT THE ANDERSON COUNTY CHARTER COMMISSION MET IN REGULAR SESSION ON AUGUST 2, 2021 AT 6:00 PM, WITH THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS PRESENT: TIM ISBEL, VL STONECIPHER, STEVE MEAD, BOB SMALLRIDGE, CHUCK FRITTS, JERRY WHITE AND SABRA BEAUCHAMP

ABSENT: STEVE EMERT

Chairman Stonecipher called the meeting to order.

Commissioner Fritts said the prayer.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Mead .

Commissioner Smallridge made a motion to approve the May 3, 2021 minutes.

Commissioner Mead seconded the motion. Motion passed.

No citizens addressed the Commission.

Contract Update – Discussion. No Action Taken.

Outside Counsel - The Law Director introduced Attorney John Owings with Owings, Wilson and Coleman Law Firm. He will be assisting with writing the Anderson County Charter.

Additional Research Items – Discussion. No Action Taken.

Old Business – None

New Business - None

Commissioner Mead moved to adjourn.

The next meeting will be September 7, 2021 at 6:00 pm.in room 312.